



# Proposal to:

# Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal

Cardinal, Ontario, Canada

# Customer FIRST Support and Services Proposal: **Premium Level**

# System:

# Foxboro IA

**ISSUED BY** : Schneider Electric Systems Canada Inc.

**ISSUED DATE**: March 11, 2024

**SE REF.** : OP-231107-13727847

**PROPOSAL NO.** : QLK-2402-7337755

**REV. NO.** : 1

**VALIDITY DATE** : This proposal is valid until May 1, 2024

### **SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC CONTACTS:**

Client Sales Executive (CSE)

Name: Gilles Gomez

Title: Client Sales Executive (CSE)

Phone: +1 1 5148225409 Mobile: +1 5142372546 E-mail: gilles.gomez@se.com





### Please Submit Purchase Orders and Tax-Exempt Certificate prior to the contract start date to:

Schneider Electric Systems Canada, Inc.
Attn: Order Management
4 Lake Street,
Dollard-des-Ormeaux
Quebec, H9B 3H9

Fax: 888-820-6558 Attn: Order Management E-mail: <a href="mailto:processautomation.ca@schneider-electric.com">processautomation.ca@schneider-electric.com</a>

Please ensure your Purchase Order includes the following information:

- Authorized signature and date.
- Ship To Address
- Invoice Address

The Schneider Electric Proposal Number <u>QLK-2402-7337755</u>, **Rev. 1** terms and conditions will govern and supersede – any terms provided by Purchaser.

### Please Remit to:

Schneider Electric Systems Canada Inc. P.O.Box 15618, Station A Toronto, Ontario M5W 1C1 Canada E: Norman.Simpson@schneider-electric.com JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. Toronto Branch Bank.No 270 Transit # 00012 Account # 4000010777 (CAD & other Currency) Account # 4000014043 (USD) Email advises to: eft@schneider-electric.com

### Proprietary Disclaimer:

This proposal contains technical and business information that is confidential and proprietary to Schneider Electric. It is provided to the customer solely for internal review and evaluation. The information contained herein may not be shown or disclosed in any form to third parties without the express consent of Schneider Electric.

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755 Rev. : 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847

Page i





# **Table of Contents**

1. Ex	ecutive Summary	1
2. Pro	pposal Scope	
2.1	Customer FIRST Program – Introduction	2
2.2	Customer FIRST Program – Premium Level	2
	stomer FIRST Features Summary	
3.1	Customer FIRST Program – Foxboro Features Summary	3
4. Ag	reement Content	
4.1	Customer FIRST Program – Feature Descriptions	5
4.1	.1 Premium Level – Included Services	5
4.1	.2 Premium Level – Optional Services	13
5. Co	mponents and Software Covered	
5.1	System – Components Covered	15
6. Co	ntact Information	16
6.1	Customer Contact Information	16
6.1	.1 Customer Addresses	16
6.1	.2 Purchasing & Accounts Payable Contacts	16
6.1	.3 Site Identification	17
6.1	.4 Site Operations Contacts	17
6.2	Schneider Electric Contact Information	18
6.2	.1 Schneider Electric Support Centers	18
6.2	.2 Material Return Instructions and Contact Information	18
7. Se	lection and Pricing Summary	20
7.1	Proposal Acceptance	20
7.2	Selection Summary	20
7.3	Billing Schedule	21
7.4	Payment Schedule	21
	reement Acceptance	
9. Po	licies and Guidelines for Specific Customer FIRST Features	23
9.1	Support Hours and Rates	23
9.2	Lifecycle Support Policy	23
9.3	Module Exchange Program (MEP) Policy	24
9.4	Flexible Services Fund Policy	27
9.5	Flexible Material Fund Policy	29
10. Co	mmercial Section	31
10.1	Project Terms and Conditions	31
10.2	Standard Terms and Conditions for Customer FIRST Agreement (CFA)	32





## 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Customer FIRST Support and Services Program offers a broad portfolio of resources designed to help ensure high levels of asset availability, utilization and reliability from Schneider Electric's EcoStruxure™ Foxboro DCS and EcoStruxure™ Triconex Safety Systems. It will help you manage your systems throughout their productive lifecycles, and protect your property and intellectual investments, maximize asset performance while helping you reduce total cost of ownership.

Customer FIRST membership facilitates fast, efficient response to requests for material, labor and technical expertise with flexible options designed to provide you with a wealth of resources through the largest partner ecosystem in the industry. From training and planning to project implementation, operation and lifecycle support, Schneider Electric and its network of partners are uniquely qualified to help you effectively utilize our applications, systems, services and solutions.

Schneider Electric's globally situated support and service teams are uniquely qualified to deliver the high-quality support and services that you require. Our support experts can provide fast and reliable support assistance, recommend risk mitigation strategies such as remote connectivity, automated back documentation, backup and restore services, and assist with maintenance tasks to help protect your Schneider Electric systems from the potential of catastrophic loss.

The Customer FIRST Program offers an array of options such as cost-control incentives, access to technical information specific to your operation, inventory management support and training opportunities for your personnel.

As technology inevitably continues to evolve, we can assist you with planning and implementation of system upgrades to ensure that you are getting the most from the latest technology with minimum disruption to your business operations.

Schneider Electric has earned a global reputation for support excellence with continuously improving levels of service and performance.

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev. : 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





# 2. PROPOSAL SCOPE

The Customer FIRST Support and Services Program offers a broad scope of support features encompassing technical support, onsite corrective support, product lifecycle assessment, and more. Discounts on value-add services are offered, and the opportunity to establish funded reserves to help cover any billable labor, material, and training requirements that you anticipate encountering during the coverage timeframe of your Agreement.

Offered in the form of an annual or multi-year agreement that can be renewed for continued coverage, your Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement serves as the foundation of a lasting service relationship that is predicated upon your success with using our technology.

### 2.1 CUSTOMER FIRST PROGRAM – INTRODUCTION

The Customer FIRST Support and Services Program will help you accomplish your short- and long-range objectives at the lowest possible cost. Program enrollment gives you the support services and resources you need to help increase asset availability, utilization and performance.

### 2.2 CUSTOMER FIRST PROGRAM – PREMIUM LEVEL

The Premium level of the Customer FIRST Support and Services program is designed for a high level of support availability, including 24/7 emergency support, and responsiveness augmented by additional services designed to empower your business. The Premium program level provides a comprehensive support and services package that includes expert technical support from skilled Schneider Electric resources, and priority en route response commitment for on-site corrective assistance. Your business will keep pace with the latest advancements in EcoStruxure<sup>TM</sup> Foxboro DCS products and solutions with access to the latest software version upgrades and maintenance releases. If applicable to covered equipment, scheduled preventive maintenance visits and accelerated shipment of material are provided. Flexible payment options are available for purchase of labor-based services, material-based services and training.

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755

Rev. : 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





# 3. CUSTOMER FIRST FEATURES SUMMARY

## 3.1 CUSTOMER FIRST PROGRAM – FOXBORO FEATURES SUMMARY

Customer FIRST Support and Services program features are summarized below.



Included Services	Premium			
Core Support and Services				
Technical Support Access	24/7			
Global Customer Support Website Access	Υ			
EcoStruxure™ Facility Expert Mobile App	Υ			
Preventive Maintenance Site Visits (per year)	2			
En route Response Commitment for Billable Onsite Corrective Assistance*	24 hours			
Software Maintenance Releases, Service Packs, Patches and Updates	Υ			
Lifecycle Assessment and Upgrade Planning Roadmap	Y			
Support Usage and Summary Report	Υ			
Module Exchange Program	Υ			
Software Version Upgrades and Revisions**	Υ			
System Asset Viewer	Υ			
Customer FIRST Program Review (per year)	1			
Services and Material Discounts				
Advantage Discount Program	50%			
Site Support Services	10%			
MEP Parts	43%			
Consulting Services	10%			
Spares	10%			

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Page 3 Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin SE Ref. : OP-231107-13727847





50%

Optional Services	Premium
Flexible Funding – Services Fund	\$6,000 / Year
Flexible Funding – Material Fund	\$1,500 / Year

<sup>†</sup> Additional conditions apply. Your sales person can advise you.

Test and Offline Development System Licenses

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Page 4 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847

<sup>\*</sup> where available

<sup>\*\*</sup> exclude labor and hardware, additional conditions apply.

<sup>\*\*\*\*</sup> All discounts on current List Price only. Certification courses not included.
\*\*\*\*Flexible Funding – Learning Services Fund is a Pre-requisite





## 4. AGREEMENT CONTENT

### 4.1 **CUSTOMER FIRST PROGRAM – FEATURE DESCRIPTIONS**

Customer FIRST Support and Services program features are described below.

### 4.1.1 Premium Level - Included Services

### 4.1.1.1 **Core Support and Services**

## **Technical Support Access**

Schneider Electric provides expert technical assistance and application support during normal business hours via regional support centers and locally-based service engineers. Each request is processed through a defined multi-level response model that assures skilled and timely attention appropriate to the urgency and complexity of the reported situation. Reported situations are assessed by support analysts according to the impact on the customer's production, safety or environment.

Note: Schneider Electric provides emergency technical support outside of normal business hours for situations that involve loss or potential loss of an essential function, such as a production line, system or plant down situation.

Premium level: 24 hours per day, 7 days per week (24/7)

### **Global Customer Support Website Access**

Schneider Electric makes available its extensive knowledgebase of technical user documentation, issue solutions, and software via the Global Customer Support (GCS) website. The registration profile allows the website user to refine their access to only the product content of interest.

Schneider Electric web tools provide online support case management. Customer personnel may submit service requests. A tracking number will be issued to the submitter, who may review case status and upload additional information as appropriate.

In addition, website-registrants will receive pro-actively issued communications of two types:

- 1. New product announcement
- 2. Notifications pertaining to lifecycle management topics such as hardware and software release notifications, and service program changes
- 3. Advisories that describe identified technical product problems and provide a solution

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Rev.: 1 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





## **EcoStruxure™ Facility Expert Mobile App**

Our EcoStruxure™ Facility Expert Digital Logbook app helps you utilize and realize value from your support agreement with digital access to reports and maintenance plan.

The digital logbook is an easy to use collaborative tool that keeps record of important documentation and maintenance schedules. The Digital Logbook allows you to eliminate paperwork, outdated files, conflicting data and unclear roles; and there are no more hold-ups because you can't get your hands on the information you need when you need it.

Improving your operational performance by:

- Accurate planning of preventive maintenance schedule.
- Greater visibility of the onsite work done.
- Details of activities undertaken during a given period.
- Access to all your reports and documentations pertaining to your CFA:
  - CFA Contract Agreement
  - Contract Management Review Reports
  - Field Services Reports (FSR)
  - Preventative maintenance (PM)
  - RoadMap Reports

## (FX) Preventive Maintenance site visits per vear

The Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement provides you with a number of Preventive Maintenance (PM) visits each year based on your selected program level. The general scope of work includes physical inspection of equipment, review of software maintenance releases and fixes, technical advisories, product alert notices (Triconex) and status of open cases. The service engineer will perform analysis of system conditions (counters, loading, etc.) to help ensure the system is operating within defined specifications. They will perform corrective actions that are within the scope of the PM visit, and schedule follow-up maintenance for additional issues if necessary. Schneider Electric will help you determine the appropriate length of the PM visit per site.

Once per year, or more frequently if EcoStruxure™ DCS Advisor Services V4.0 (or higher) is enabled, Schneider Electric will collect system configuration data via use of a tool known as FERRET. This data will be used for the following purposes:

- It will be analyzed as a proactive aid in helping to identify any potential need for corrective or preventive activity.
- It will be used to develop your annual Lifecycle Assessment Report and Upgrade Planning Roadmap.
- It is available for System Asset Viewer application use.

The data files will be stored in the Global Support Center's (GCS) Installed Base Repository.

These Customer FIRST features are described in this proposal.

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Rev.: 1 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin Date: March 11, 2024 SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





### Notes:

- 1) The delivery schedule and timing of PM visits will be determined in consultation with the customer.
- 2) Customer should review the full scope of work with the Service Engineer prior to their arrival at site.
- 3) The Preventive Maintenance Site Visit includes (if installed) DCS Advisor Server maintenance support.
- 4) The Preventive Maintenance Site Visit does not include:
  - a) Installation of version licenses, revision releases and maintenance releases, or any startup activities.
  - b) Activities associated with the optional DCS Advisor Services: Remote Backup Service, NetSight Console, DCS Advisor Server with Data Diode, Patch Deployment to DCS Advisor Server.
- 5) These activities, and others that fall outside of PM scope of work, require the scheduling of a separate site visit for which the labor terms of this agreement will apply.

(FX) Premium level: Two (2) Preventive Maintenance site visits per year

## En Route Response Commitment for Billable Onsite Corrective Assistance

Schneider Electric solutions are reliably supported by our technical engineers/consultants in collaboration with you via voice and electronic communication methods. If remote connection directly to your EcoStruxure Foxboro DCS is applicable, with proper approvals, this approach may be engaged to help facilitate matters.

If we are unable to resolve your support case via these methods, Schneider Electric will provide hands-on corrective assistance. These activities may include system troubleshooting, defective hardware replacement, and software restoration<sup>3</sup> or correction due to data corruption or necessity.

While this type of support is typically time sensitive in nature, actual en route response time commitment will be determined by the Customer FIRST support level, situation urgency and availability of regional resources. Arrival time at site is dependent on transportation contingencies beyond Schneider Electric's control.

### Notes:

- 1) Activities that are not covered by Onsite Corrective Assistance include application work, block configuration, display creation, historian creation, software installation, manual installation activity associated with "Patch Deployment to EcoStruxure™ DCS Advisor Server", preventative maintenance work, startup support and upgrade labor.
- 2) Labor and materials, travel and living expenses are billable unless otherwise defined in the Agreement terms. Billable labor hours include travel time, time spent obtaining plant access, time spent onsite and offsite performing evaluations and preparing documentation necessary for the assigned tasks.
- 3) Software restoration may be accomplished using install discs or via download. If the customer's data is corrupt, there may be no recourse, in some cases, to restore corrupted user data.

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Rev.: 1 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





This Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement includes:

Premium level: 24 Hours En Route Response Commitment for Corrective Assistance

### Software Maintenance Releases, Service Packs, Patches and Updates

With the Customer FIRST Support and Service program, Schneider Electric provides maintenance releases and fixes for covered software related to your application that is released during the contract period.

Maintenance releases provide corrections to software defects within a software revision level. Media will be made available upon release, in electronic or physical format as appropriate, during the program's coverage timeframe. Schneider Electric makes no guarantee that maintenance releases will become available during the agreement period.

Installation labor for version licenses, revision releases, maintenance releases, service packs, patches and updates, and startup activities is not included in this program feature. These activities require the scheduling of a separate site visit for which the labor terms of this Agreement apply.

### **Lifecycle Assessment and Upgrade Planning Roadmap**

Schneider Electric understands that you have a need and a responsibility to maintain system equipment and software applications as critical parts of your business. The Lifecycle Assessment and Upgrade Planning Roadmap report provides a top level view of the current lifecycle status of the products in use at your site and outlines key business objectives related to their maintenance and supportability.

Schneider Electric will collect system configuration data either remotely or during a site visit. The data files are stored in the Global Customer Support (GCS) Installed Base Repository and used to develop the Lifecycle Assessment and Upgrade Planning report. The report will be reviewed with you during the annual Customer FIRST Program renewal process.

The components of your system and applications, as appropriate, will be assessed for potential upgrade to preferred (current) phase products. This collaborative activity between customer staff and Schneider Electric focuses on identifying a logical progression for the potential upgrade of your equipment, software and files, and potentially, third party products.

The Lifecycle Assessment and Upgrade Planning Roadmap will help facilitate effective short and long-term upgrade planning decisions. It will be updated annually and may be used as the foundation for the optional Modernization and Migration Planning service.

## **Support Usage and Summary Report**

The Support Usage and Summary Report highlights all technical support case activity, labor-based site visits and material exchange activity logged by Schneider Electric's service management system.

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin SE Ref. : OP-231107-13727847





## **Module Exchange Program (MEP)**

The Module Exchange Program provides access to its materials inventory when rapid replacement of malfunctioning equipment is necessary. If you encounter an issue with a component, you may arrange for exchange of the malfunctioning unit with another unit. Schneider Electric will provide an authorization number and shipping instructions. The replacement material generally ships within one business day of request for service.

Product provided under the Module Exchange Program is billable. Pricing for the replacement unit is contingent on receipt of the malfunctioning equipment at Schneider Electric's designated facility, and subsequent determination that the returned unit meets Module Exchange Program Policy qualifications.

Note: The price of equipment provided from Module Exchange Program inventory may be applied to the Flexible Material Fund or MEP – Material Cost-Inclusive feature, if appropriate under the terms of your Customer FIRST Agreement.

### **Software Version Upgrades and Revisions**

Schneider Electric has established clear and predictable product support timelines to enable customers to plan product upgrades in advance of reaching obsolescence. This proactive approach provides a comprehensive view of product lifecycle phases, phase transition timing, and available support during each phase.



Schneider Electric provides Software Version Upgrade and Revision entitlement with the Customer FIRST Support and Services program.

The Version release is the most significant software upgrade. It generally contains major new features and enhancements. The Revision release generally contains both software correction and minor enhancements.

License(s) and upgrade media will be made available upon release, in electronic or physical format as appropriate, during the program coverage timeframe. Schneider Electric makes no guarantee that version and revision releases will become available during the agreement period.

For Foxboro customers, Software Version entitlement is offered for the same product, excluding platform change. A platform change occurs when the underlying software framework and environment has been changed to a dissimilar offering permitting new application software to operate and run. (e.g., FoxView to Control HMI or Aim\* Historian to the Wonderware Historian).

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





This benefit provides you with the ability to upgrade and keep covered Foxboro software continuously current at the Preferred (i.e., most current) lifecycle phase.

### Version Upgrade Eligibility:

- Installed Software must be at the current version (Preferred lifecycle phase) to be eligible for version entitlement. Software that was in the Preferred lifecycle phase when the client's first Customer FIRST agreement was executed is eligible for version entitlement. When these criteria have been met, entitlement to software versions of Foxboro or Triconex software begins and will continue for as long as an active Customer FIRST agreement (with Software Version and Revision entitlement) is maintained with no lapse in support coverage.
- The Components and Software List provided in this proposal will identify Schneider Electric software eligible for version upgrade.

## Revision Upgrade Eligibility:

Eligibility for revision entitlement will continue for as long as an active Customer FIRST agreement (with Software Version and Revision entitlement) is maintained with no lapse in support coverage.

### Notes:

- 1) Installation labor for version licenses, revision releases, maintenance releases, service packs, patches and updates, and startup activities is not included in this program feature. These activities require the scheduling of a separate site visit for which the labor terms of this Agreement apply.
- 2) Upgrades to third-party operating system (OS) software, application software, and antivirus software may be required to support new Schneider Electric system and application version and revision releases. These are not part of the Software Version Upgrades and Revisions element of the Customer FIRST program.
- 3) New hardware may be required to support new Foxboro or Triconex systems and application version and revision releases. An incentive program may be offered as appropriate to support such requirements. (Refer to Advantage Discount Program.)
- 4) System shutdown may be required to support hardware and software version and revision releases.
- 5) A platform change occurs when the underlying software framework and environment has been changed to a dissimilar offering permitting new application software to operate and run. (e.g., FoxView to Control HMI or Aim\* Historian to the Wonderware Historian)

### **System Asset Viewer**

The System Asset Viewer is a stand-alone application that accesses the system configuration data maintained by Schneider Electric in the Global Customer Support (GCS) Installed Base Repository.

Its easy-to-use Windows-based graphical interface presents a wealth of system configuration data - grouped by node, station, monitor or switch and include component version and patch levels, site topology, and lifecycle stages - to provide a complete view of where equipment is in its lifecycle. In addition, System Asset Viewer can be an invaluable aid in troubleshooting and diagnosing system anomalies and may potentially prevent production downtime or poor performance.

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin

Page 10

SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





If the System Asset Viewer application is installed on a personal computer or EcoStruxure™ DCS Advisor server at your site, your staff can use it to access your system configuration data and lifecycle phase information on demand. System Asset Viewer can also be used by Schneider Electric's Field Service Representatives during site visits.

### **Customer FIRST Program Review**

Schneider Electric will review the Customer FIRST Support and Services program performance periodically with you on a schedule determined by the selected program level. Discussion may include technical support, labor, material and remote services usage as applicable to the products covered by this agreement, plus lifecycle management and technical topics of value to your site.

Premium level: One (1) Customer FIRST Program Review per year

### 4.1.1.2 Services and Material Discounts

## **Advantage Discount Program**

Schneider Electric's careful attention to backward compatibility and serviceability enables our customers to preserve intellectual property and save significant downtime as they modernize. The Advantage Discount Program enables EcoStruxure Foxboro DCS and EcoStruxure Triconex Safety System customers to cost-effectively modernize aging equipment with innovative and productivity enhancing technologies.

Schneider Electric offers a significant incentive for modernizing system hardware and software to Preferred (current) lifecycle products, in exchange for the return of older equipment to Schneider Electric. The Advantage Discount Program is a global discount policy offering a 25% discount from global list price to loyal existing customers. Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement customers receive an additional 25% discount, bringing the total Advantage Discount Program discount to 50% off the global list price of eligible parts.

The Advantage Discount Program applies to the upgrading of equipment in the lifecycle categories of Available, Mature, Lifetime, and Obsolete with products in the Preferred product lifecycle. Discounts applies to Preferred lifecycle product purchases only.

In general, Advantage Discount Program applies to product manufactured by Schneider Electric factories. Third party buyout equipment is generally not eligible for the Advantage Discount Program.

The returned equipment must be the functional equivalent of the equipment being modernized. Products returned must be in refurbishable condition. Contaminated, damaged, non-repairable or obviously broken material will not be accepted in trade. Additionally, equipment must be return to a Schneider Electric-designated location within 3 months of shipment of the new equipment.

Premium level: Advantage Discount Program offers 50% off the global list price.

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755 Rev. : 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





## **Site Support Services**

A discount on the current Schneider Electric labor rate at time of service is provided on labor hours dedicated to Site Support Services.

Site Support Services utilize the talents of Schneider Electric Service Engineers to supplement your site resources with simple day to day activities or to help solve more complex engineering issues. Schneider Electric will help you define the scope of work to meet your specific requirements.

Premium level: 10% discount on labor rate for Site Support Services

### **Module Exchange Program (MEP) Parts**

The price of unit supplied to the customer will qualify for a discount contingent on material returned to Schneider Electric meeting Module Exchange Program qualifications.

Note: Not applicable to consumable products

MEP Parts: 43% discount on list price. Landed costs (duties, fees, etc.) may apply.

## **Consulting Services**

Consulting Services allow you to leverage skilled Schneider Electric resources that can help optimize the performance of your existing assets, conduct routine performance assessments and assist with new product deployment. The Customer FIRST Program provides you with access to discounts on Consulting Services when purchased in conjunction with your support and services agreement.

Whether you are planning a new project and need help architecting a solution, or want recommendations to optimize the performance of your existing application for a single-site project or a global, enterprise-wide engagement, we will help you make arrangements with the appropriate resources within the Schneider Electric organization. Consulting Services combine best-in-class software technologies with in-depth process, plant and IT expertise.

Premium level: 10% discount on list price

### **Spares**

The Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement enables you to better manage and control the cost of equipment by providing a discount on the purchase of new material that will be stored as spare inventory at your site.

Premium level: 10% discount on list price

### **Test and Offline Development System Licenses**

For customers that use an offline system to mirror their online system for testing upgrades, development, etc., before moving those changes into production, a discount is applicable to all off-line test system, development or disaster recovery system licenses.

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 12
Rev. : 1 Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin

 Rev.: 1
 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin

 Date: March 11, 2024
 SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





Note: Customers must agree that all software licenses in the Off-Line system will solely be used for non-production testing or simulation or emergency back-up purposes and for no other purposes whatsoever. Applicable system will be non-production off-line except for temporary periods during emergency back-up situations such as disaster recovery or failover. The off-line system licenses are to be identical to the on-line system licenses in product type but may be of lesser quantity or functional capacity (such as lower I/O count, lower tag count, less equipment). Certain product exclusions may apply – ask your sales person for further information.

Premium level: 50% discount on list price

## 4.1.2 Premium Level – Optional Services

Schneider Electric offers the following optional services with the Customer FIRST Support and Services program for your consideration.

### Flexible Services Fund

Customer FIRST Program coverage provides you with labor-based support and services that are billable at local Schneider Electric labor rates at time of service. These include Onsite Corrective Assistance, Site Support Service, Consulting Services, training and time spent installing hardware or software associated with Customer FIRST Program features. In addition, the service engineer's travel time to and from your site and associated travel and living expenses are billable.

Provisioning the optional Flexible Services Fund with funds that accrue as part of your scheduled agreement payments allows you to spread payment of applicable labor-based services over the coverage period of your Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement.

An appropriate amount can be established based on the number of anticipated labor hours for your company, site(s) and situation multiplied by the prevailing local Schneider Electric service rate. Schneider Electric can help you make this determination.

Flexible Services Fund Policy applies.

### **Flexible Material Fund**

Schneider Electric provides fast, cost-effective replacement of major system components in the event of a module failure. If you encounter an issue with your Foxboro or Triconex system, you may arrange for shipment of factory-refurbished material from Schneider Electric inventory in exchange for your malfunctioning unit. The equipment provided is billable.

Provisioning the optional Flexible Material Fund with funds that accrue as part of your scheduled agreement payments allows you to spread payment of applicable material-based services over the coverage period of your Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement.

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev. : 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin SE Ref. : OP-231107-13727847





Schneider Electric can help you determine an appropriate amount with which to provision the Flexible Material Fund based on an estimation of your site's material requirements during the Agreement's coverage period. You may order applicable material from Schneider Electric at any time during the Agreement coverage period.

The Flexible Material Fund Policy applies.

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





# 5. COMPONENTS AND SOFTWARE COVERED

### 5.1 SYSTEM - COMPONENTS COVERED

The following system components and software are covered under the terms and conditions of this Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement and the Lifecycle Support Policy. Components and software not listed are not covered by this Agreement.

ltem	Qty	Product	Short Description	Current Lifecycle phase	Obsolete Date	Previous Contract Entitlement to SW Version Upgrade (Yes/No)
10.00	2	S10B23220000	Software Suite License for Foxboro DCS +I/A Series	LifeTime		Yes
20.00	1	J0201LA	Foxboro DCS Control License, 100 Analog IO	Preferred		Yes
30.00	4	J0201LC	Foxboro DCS Control License, 100 Discrete IO	Preferred		Yes
40.00	1	J0201LE	Foxboro DCS Control License, 100 Soft IO	Preferred		Yes
50.00	1	K0201GC	IACC V2.6 Media Kit	Obsolete	12/1/2021	Yes
60.00	1	P0914XQ	FBM214, HART Inputs, 8 Channels	LifeTime		
70.00	2	P0922VT	FBM214, HART Inputs, 8 Channels	Available		
80.00	1	P0922VU	FBM215, HART Output, 8 Channels	Preferred		
90.00	1	P0926GU	FBM230, Four Serial Ports, Single	Mature		
100.00	1	Q0301AP	AIM*Historian SW Lic (500 Points)	Available		Yes
110.00	1	Q0301RA	I/A Series Report Package	Available		Yes
120.00	4	RH102AQ	x440G2-12t-10GE4 (12-Port Copper managed switch)	Preferred		
130.00	2	RH103DJ	H92 Workstation for Windows; Style N, P, and R	LifeTime		
140.00	8	RH914TR	FBM217, Discrete Inputs, 32 Channels	Preferred		
150.00	6	RH916TA	FBM242 Channel Isolated External Source DO	Preferred		
160.00	2	RH924YA	FCP280 Control Processor	Preferred		
170.00	3	RH927AH	FBM214b, HART Inputs, 8 Channels	Preferred		
180.00	1	RH927AK	FBM244, HART 4 Input + 4 Output Channels	Preferred		

The equipment listed above in the Obsolete Phase cannot be supported by the Module Exchange Program.

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





# 6. CONTACT INFORMATION

## 6.1 CUSTOMER CONTACT INFORMATION

Customer shall provide the following information to Schneider Electric.

## 6.1.1 Customer Addresses

Customer shall provide the following addresses to Schneider Electric.

Site Name:	Township of Edwardsburgh/Cardinal
Billing Address	4000 John Street, Cardinal, ON, K0E 1E0, Canada
Shipping Address	4000 John Street, Cardinal, ON, K0E 1E0, Canada
End User Address	4000 John Street, Cardinal, ON, K0E 1E0, Canada
Sold To Address	4000 John Street, Cardinal, ON, K0E 1E0, Canada

# 6.1.2 Purchasing & Accounts Payable Contacts

Customer shall provide contact information for purchasing and accounts payable to Schneider Electric.

NO.	CONTACT NAME	RESPONSIBILITY	CONTACT INFORMATION
1	Miranda Skuce		Tel:
			Email: mskuce@twpec.ca
2			Tel:
			Mobile:
			Fax:
			Email:

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





### 6.1.3 Site Identification

This Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement covers the identified system(s) located at the following site(s).

1.	Site Name and Location	Township of Edwardsburgh – Cardinal
2.	System(s)	Foxboro IA

## **6.1.4** Site Operations Contacts

Customer shall provide personnel names and contact information for the individuals that Schneider Electric may contact for support purposes.

NO	CONTACT NAME	RESPONSIBILITY	CONTACT INFORMATION	PROCESS UNIT ID, LOCATION
1	Dave Grant	Director of	Tel: 613-658-3055	
		Operations	Mobile: 613-349-4541	
			Fax:	
			Email: dsgrant@twpec.ca	
2			Tel:	
			Mobile:	
			Fax:	
			Email:	

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





### 6.2 SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC CONTACT INFORMATION

Schneider Electric shall provide contact information to the customer.

# **6.2.1 Schneider Electric Support Centers**

The following authorized support centers are available to provide support to your site for the products covered by this Agreement:

## Worldwide contact points:

Global Customer Support (GCS) website: <a href="https://pasupport.schneider-electric.com/">https://pasupport.schneider-electric.com/</a>
Training website: <a href="http://industrialtraining.schneider-electric.com/processautomation/iom">https://industrialtraining.schneider-electric.com/processautomation/iom</a>

Email:

General and non-technical inquiries: <a href="mailto:systems.support@schneider-electric.com">systems.support@schneider-electric.com</a>

Technical support requests: pa.support@schneider-electric.com

Region	Location	Phone	General Email	Technical Support
Americas	Foxboro, MA Lake Forest, CA	+1 508-549-2424 US/Canada Toll Free:	systems.support@se.com	PA.Support@se.com
		+1 866-746-6477		

### 6.2.2 Material Return Instructions and Contact Information

It is essential to confirm the correct address, instructions, and authorization for material return claims and Modernization claims prior to shipping a package to Schneider Electric.

For all material returns and exchanges, contact Schneider Electric via the contact points listed above or one of the Schneider Electric offices listed below to request a Return Material Authorization (RMA) number and the correct shipping address to which to return the material.

Note: Check the Office Locator (http://www.buyautomation.com/OfficeLocator/) for current contact information, as the information listed below will change over time.

CUSTOMER SITE LOCATION	SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC ADDRESS	CONTACT INFORMATION
------------------------	----------------------------	---------------------

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





CUSTOMER SITE LOCATION	SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC ADDRESS	CONTACT INFORMATION	
CUSTOMER SITE LOCATION  USA and Canada:  NOTE: Always contact the telephone numbers provided here to request Return Material Authorization Number (RMA#) and shipping instructions prior to shipping unit.	Schneider Electric Systems USA, Inc. Dept. 910 Field Service Receiving 15 Pond Street Foxboro, MA 02035 USA  Schneider Electric RMA# 235 Burgess Road Greensboro, NC 27409 USA  Schneider Electric Systems Canada Inc. 4 Lake Road, D.D.O, Quebec	CONTACT INFORMATION  USA, Canada toll free: Telephone: +1 866 746 6477  Worldwide support: Telephone: +1 508 549 2424 Fax: +1 508 549 4999 Email: systems.support@schneider-electric.com	
	H9B-3H9 Canada		

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev. : 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Page 19 Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin SE Ref. : OP-231107-13727847





# 7. SELECTION AND PRICING SUMMARY

### 7.1 PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE

This proposal is valid until May 1, 2024

**Note:** Notwithstanding any provision of this proposal or the Purchase Order, Schneider Electric reserves its right to increase the price after the validity date to cover the cost caused by any delays or an extreme price inflation arising for reasons outside the reasonable control of Schneider Electric or its Suppliers and such change shall be documented through a Change Order or a revision to the Purchase Order.

### 7.2 SELECTION SUMMARY

The Customer FIRST Program's Support and Services Agreement provides a comprehensive portfolio of support and service features that addresses your short term and long term maintenance and lifecycle challenges. Refer to the Agreement Content section of this Agreement for a summary matrix and description of program level features.

The following information covers pricing for the proposed Customer FIRST Support and Services program.

### **Included Services**

The "Included Services" are covered by the selected Customer FIRST Program level's price before Optional Features are added. Refer to the Agreement Content section of this Agreement for a summary matrix and description of program features.

## **Optional Services**

The Customer FIRST Program offers the listed Support and Services features on an optional basis.

SELECTION SUMMARY	PRICING	PRICING	PRICING
CELEGITOR COMMUNICI	YEAR 1	YEAR 2	YEAR 3
INCLUDED SERVICES (Price before Optional Services)	\$27,083.00	\$28,387.00	\$29,756.00
OPTIONAL SERVICES (and other detail):			
	\$6,000.00	\$6,000.00	\$6,000.00
	\$1,500.00	\$1,500.00	\$1,500.00
TOTAL:	\$34,583.00	\$35,887.00	\$37,256.00

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





### 7.3 BILLING SCHEDULE

This Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement is:

□ A renewal of a prior Agreement

The billing cycle is:

### 7.4 PAYMENT SCHEDULE

### **Option 1: Multiyear option**

PAYMENT SCHEDULE	ANNUAL PAYMENT TOTAL	PERIOD PAYMENT	PERIOD LENGTH	START DATE	END DATE
Year 1	\$34,583.00	\$34,583.00	Annual	May 1, 2024	April 30, 2025
Year 2	\$35,887.00	\$35,887.00	Annual	May 1, 2025	April 30, 2026
Year 3	\$37,256.00	\$37,256.00	Annual	May 1, 2026	April 30, 2027
Total	\$107,726.00				

Payment is due 30 days from date of invoice.

**Note:** The Multiyear pricing listed above is based on the customer signing the proposed Contract and receiving an acceptable order prior to the renewal date.

In the event the customer does not sign this agreement, or the order received after the renewal date, Option 2 pricing and support will be

provided, and this support contract will be valid for 1 year and renewed annually.

## **Option 2: One year option**

PAYMENT SCHEDULE	ANNUAL PAYMENT TOTAL	PERIOD PAYMENT	PERIOD LENGTH	START DATE	END DATE
Year 1	\$35,275.00	\$35,275.00	Annual	May 1, 2024	April 30, 2025
Total	\$35,275.00				

Payment is due 30 days from date of invoice.

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847



3-year agreement (option 1)

Authorized Purchaser Representative

TERMS

(print name)

Title

Date



# 8. AGREEMENT ACCEPTANCE

Execution of this Agreement represents acceptance into the Customer FIRST program and its terms and conditions.

INITIALS

1-year agreement (option 2)	
PURCHASER	
Client (Company) Name	
Address	
City/State/Zip	
Country	
Authorized Purchaser Representative (signature)	_

SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC	
Schneider Electric Local Entity Name	
Acceptance By (signature)	
Acceptance By (print name)	
Title	
Date	

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Page 22 Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin SE Ref. : OP-231107-13727847





# 9. POLICIES AND GUIDELINES FOR SPECIFIC CUSTOMER FIRST FEATURES

### 9.1 SUPPORT HOURS AND RATES

Customer FIRST Support and Services shall be performed during the normal workday as defined by local practice or labor law, or as defined in this Agreement. Support, services, and travel hours in excess of the normal workday may be billable, subject to the specified Customer FIRST Program level, labor terms and provisions of this Agreement.

NO.	TITLE	DESCRIPTION
1	NORMAL WORKDAY HOURS	Normal workday hours: 8:00AM to 5:00 PM
		⊠ Schneider Electric-designated holidays will be observed.
2	TRAVEL HOURS	Travel hours shall accrue from the point of origin and cover time traveling to and returning from the job site.
		The point of origin shall be:  ☑ Home base of the Schneider Electric engineer performing the work
		The following detail will apply as determined appropriate by Schneider Electric and Customer. Travel hours will be billed for:  ☑ Actual time incurred
3	SERVICE RATES	

### 9.2 LIFECYCLE SUPPORT POLICY

Schneider Electric has established clear and predictable product support timelines to enable customers to plan product upgrades in advance of reaching obsolescence. This proactive approach provides a comprehensive view of product lifecycle phases, phase transition timing, and available support during each phase.

Information about the products currently supported in each lifecycle phase is posted on the respective Schneider Electric brand support websites, and we provide periodic notification of all product transitions from one lifecycle phase to the next.

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





The Lifecycle Support Policy provides consistent and predictable guidelines for product support, compatibility, availability and repair. The policy establishes clear and predictable product support timelines to assist customers with managing end of life issues related to their installed Electric system equipment. This proactive approach provides a comprehensive view of product lifecycle phases, phase transition timing, and available support during each phase. This information enables customers to plan product upgrades years in advance. Schneider Electric system products move through five phases during their lifecycles:

- Preferred Products (PREF): These products are the most recent sales-released products available in their functional area.
- Available Products (AVAL): Products are available for sale primarily for expansion projects. They are no longer the Preferred Product offering.
- Mature Phase (MATR): Products withdrawn from sale. Comprehensive support services are provided.
- LifeTime Phase (LIFE): Schneider Electric continues to support and maintain standard Schneider Electric products based on an annual review of support capability.
- Obsolete (OBSL): Schneider Electric will determine if a product is unrepairable due to
  age or obsolescence and will provide advance notice via email to client personnel that
  have registered on the Global Customer Support website. Once the product has entered
  the Obsolete Phase, Schneider Electric can no longer provide a quality repair nor
  provide a module exchange. Products that are identified as Obsolete shall be excluded
  from coverage under this Service Agreement. If that product fails, Schneider Electric will
  suggest purchase of an alternate replacement.

Note: Schneider Electric may adjust Product List Value (PLV) throughout product lifecycle.

## 9.3 MODULE EXCHANGE PROGRAM (MEP) POLICY

If you encounter an issue with your Foxboro or Triconex system, Schneider Electric will help you return it to normal operation. When replacement of a malfunctioning component is determined to be the best solution, a unit may be shipped from Schneider Electric inventory in exchange for your malfunctioning unit. You must be covered by a Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement to receive this benefit.

Product provided under the Module Exchange Program is billable, and may be applied to the Module Exchange Program (MEP) - Material Cost-Inclusive feature or the Flexible Material Fund if appropriate.

Major system components are carefully selected for refurbishment and inclusion in Schneider Electric inventory. These components undergo a comprehensive refurbishment process including error detection and correction. Firmware is updated when appropriate and the hardware is put through Schneider Electric's manufacturing product testing sequence. A 90-day warranty is provided on refurbished equipment.

1) CUSTOMER FIRST COVERAGE CONDITIONS

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





The Module Exchange Program (MEP) is available to Foxboro and Triconex system customers in non-Nuclear industries that have Customer FIRST program Elite or Premium level coverage.

The requested replacement unit will be shipped by Schneider Electric in ADVANCE of Schneider Electric receiving your malfunctioning unit.

### 2) PRODUCT LIFECYCLE AND AVAILABILITY

Components are categorized in the Available, Preferred, Mature, LifeTime, and Obsolete Phases defined in the Lifecycle Policy in the "Components and Software Covered" section of the Customer FIRST Support and Service Agreement. Product lifecycle status may affect availability, as described below.

- Products in Preferred, Available and Mature Phases are generally available for shipment within one business day, in accordance with Customer FIRST program level.
- Products in LifeTime Phase will be supplied on a reasonable effort basis, with shipment subject to availability, in accordance with Customer FIRST program level.
- Products in Obsolete Phase are not supported under this program. In situations in which
  it is determined that an Obsolete Phase product has failed, Schneider Electric may
  suggest that client purchase a new functionally equivalent Preferred Phase product if
  available.

## 3) ORDERING INSTRUCTIONS and PRICING

Equipment is provided at the price prevailing at the time of shipment, if the exchange transaction meets the conditions detailed below.

- a) Equipment can be requested by the customer's authorized personnel by contacting the Global Customer Support center in the United States of America (telephone +(00)1 508-549-2424) or Schneider Electric representative in the customer's geographical area. Refer to the Schneider Electric Contact \ Material Return section of the Customer FIRST Support and Service Agreement.
- b) Shipping and handling costs may apply. This detail varies by country in accordance with local custom and regulations. Your Schneider Electric representative will advise you on this detail.

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin SE Ref. : OP-231107-13727847





- c) The requested replacement material will be shipped generally within one business day of order placement, subject to availability. Refer to "Product Lifecycle and Availability" above.
- d) Delivery of critical equipment within 24 hours may be arranged if availability and transportation logistics allow it; a premium charge will apply.
- e) A purchase order or credit card number will be requested at time of order placement if product is billable.

## 4) INSTRUCTIONS FOR PRODUCT RETURN TO SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC-DESIGNATED LOCATION

- a) A Return Material Authorization (RMA) number will be provided at the time of order placement for use in returning the malfunctioning unit to an address designated by Schneider Electric. The RMA number must be clearly identified on the box in which the malfunctioning unit is being shipped.
- b) Schneider Electric is not responsible for loss, or delay in processing, of returned material when packaging lacks clear identification (i.e., Return Material Authorization number, your company name, individual contact name and address) or is received at any Schneider Electric address other than the specific address provided with a Return Material Authorization number.
- c) The malfunctioning equipment must be received at the Schneider Electric-designated location within 20 days from date of Schneider Electric shipping the replacement unit to the customer.

### 5) EVALUATION OF RETURNED PRODUCT

- Schneider Electric will evaluate returned material to determine whether it is in acceptable condition for repair/refurbishment and subsequent inclusion in Schneider Electric inventory.
- b) Schneider Electric reserves the right to disqualify returned units that do not qualify as visually presentable to our next client (i.e., scratched, written upon), or which have been damaged by misuse, incorrect installation, power surges, exposed to contaminants, force majeure, or subjected to non-Schneider Electric unauthorized repair. Such damage may prevent the modules from being repaired reliably and these modules must be removed from the pool of replacement modules.

## 6) NON-COMPLIANCE

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary

Rev. : 1

Date: March 11, 2024

fidential and Proprietary Page 26
Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin
SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





a) Non-compliance with this policy will result in the issuance of an invoice for the full list price of product provided. Purchaser agrees to provide Schneider Electric with a funded purchase order for this purpose.

## 7) WARRANTY

a) The Module Exchange Program does not cover warranty replacement. For warranty replacement, the client can arrange for a return to the factory for repair or replacement in accordance with Schneider Electric warranty terms.

### 8) CONSUMABLE PRODUCTS

a) The Module Exchange Program supports most consumable products at full value with the benefit of expedited shipment.

### 9.4 FLEXIBLE SERVICES FUND POLICY

### Flexible Services Fund can be used for:

- The following labor-based services associated with Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement features:
  - After-hours Technical Assistance cases
  - Onsite Corrective Assistance
  - Site Support Service
  - System File Maintenance Evaluations for Triconex systems
  - Consulting Services provisioned under this Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement
  - Cybersecurity Services, Modicon Services, Turbomachinery Controls (TMC)
     Services, or other Schneider Electric services provisioned under this Customer
     FIRST Support and Services Agreement
- Installation of maintenance releases, revision releases, version releases
- Installation of EcoStruxure<sup>™</sup> DCS Advisor Services Deployment-delivered Quick Fixes, patches and anti-virus software
- Installation of product and software associated with the Module Exchange/Reserve Program
- Installation of product and software associated with the Parts Management Program
- Installation of software associated with System Auditor
- Installation of product and software associated with Cybersecurity Services
- Installation and startup assistance of M580 controller(s) purchased through a Customer FIRST Modicon Services Agreement appended to this Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement.
- Schneider Electric service personnel travel hours to/from the customer site
- Travel and living expenses related to Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement features

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 27
Rev. : 1 Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin
Date : March 11, 2024 SE Ref. : OP-231107-13727847





- Training (customized, on-customer site or in our training facilities) fees coverage as incurred, for:
  - Customers that do not have Learning Services Fund coverage under this Agreement.
  - o Training opportunities that are excluded from Learning Services Fund coverage per the Services Fund Policy.

## Flexible Services Fund cannot be used for:

- Activities, features, products, software, programs, and solutions not provisioned under the Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement
- Labor hours for activities, products, software, programs, and solutions not related to Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement features
- Travel and living expenses not related to Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement features

### The following terms and conditions apply to the Flexible Service Fund:

- 1) The Flexible Services Fund may be provisioned by the customer for a value that will accrue during the coverage period of the Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement, in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. Allocation to the Flexible Services Fund may differ each year within a multi-year Agreement.
- Customer's contribution to the Flexible Services Fund will be made together with Agreement payments in accordance with the agreement billing schedule. It may be increased or decreased at renewal of the Agreement. Customer's contribution cannot be cancelled during the annual term or multi-year coverage period.
- 3) The scope of services usage can be defined at any time prior to, or during, the Agreement coverage period. Delivery of services must be taken within the coverage period.
- 4) As applicable services are provided, the selling price will be deducted from the Flexible Services Fund. Once the Flexible Services Fund's value has been fully used, no further services can be applied. If desired, customer may replenish funding for use during the remainder of the coverage period.
- 5) During the Agreement coverage period, unused Flexible Services Fund balance may be moved to provision another Fund. (Exception: Additional funding will not be accepted into the Learning Services Fund.)
- 6) At Agreement expiration, unused Flexible Services Fund balance
  - a) may be rolled forward, establishing a beginning balance in the Flexible Services Fund upon renewal of the Agreement for the next coverage period.

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 28 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin Rev.: 1 SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





- b) may be moved to provision another Fund within the Agreement on renewal. (Exception: Additional funding will not be accepted into the Learning Services Fund.)
- c) cannot be applied to the Agreement itself on renewal
- d) will not be refunded to the customer.
- 7) If the Agreement is terminated prior to its expiration date, accrued unused Flexible Services Fund balance will not be refunded to the customer.
- 8) If the Agreement is terminated prior to its expiration date, a lump-sum invoice will be issued for Flexible Services Fund usage above the accrued customer contribution.

### 9.5 FLEXIBLE MATERIAL FUND POLICY

### Flexible Material Fund can be used for:

- Purchase of replacement hardware provided by the Module Exchange Program
- Purchase of replacement hardware provided by the Module Reserve Program
- Purchase of new hardware associated with Cybersecurity Services
- Purchase of new hardware designated as Spare material

### Flexible Material Fund cannot be used for:

 Purchase of hardware or software associated with other Schneider Electric programs and solutions not related to the Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement.

## The following terms and conditions apply to the Flexible Material Fund:

- 1) The Flexible Material Fund may be provisioned by the customer for a value that will accrue during the coverage period of the Customer FIRST Support and Services Agreement, in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. Allocation to the Flexible Material Fund may differ each year within a multi-year Agreement.
- 2) Customer's contribution to the Flexible Material Fund will be made together with Agreement payments in accordance with the agreement billing schedule. It may be increased or decreased at renewal of the Agreement. Customer's contribution cannot be cancelled during the annual term or multi-year coverage period.
- 3) The bill of material can be defined at any time prior to, or during, the coverage period. Delivery of products must be taken within the Agreement coverage period. As applicable products are shipped, the selling price will be deducted from the Flexible Material Fund.

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 29 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin Rev.: 1 SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





- 4) Once the Flexible Material Fund's value has been fully used, no further products or services can be applied. If desired, customer may replenish funding for use during the remainder of the coverage period.
- 5) During the Agreement coverage period, unused Flexible Material Fund balance may be moved to provision another Fund. (Exception: Additional funding will not be accepted into the Learning Services Fund.)
- 6) At Agreement expiration, unused Flexible Material Fund balance:
  - a) may be rolled forward, establishing a beginning balance in the Flexible Material Fund upon renewal of the agreement for the next coverage period
  - may be moved to provision another Fund within the Agreement on renewal.
     (Exception: Additional funding will not be accepted into the Learning Services Fund.)
  - c) cannot be applied to the Agreement itself on renewal
  - d) will not be refunded to the customer.
- 7) If the Agreement is terminated prior to its expiration date, accrued unused Flexible Material Fund balance will not be refunded to the customer.
- 8) If the Agreement is terminated prior to its expiration date, a lump-sum invoice will be issued for Flexible Material Fund usage above the accrued customer contribution.

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev. : 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





# 10. COMMERCIAL SECTION

## 10.1 PROJECT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Proposal Validity:	This proposal is valid until May 1, 2024
	Notwithstanding any provision of this proposal or the Purchase Order, Schneider Electric reserves its right to increase the price after the validity date to cover the cost caused by any delays or an extreme price inflation arising for reasons outside the reasonable control of Schneider Electric or its Suppliers and such change shall be documented through a Change Order or a revision to the Purchase Order.
Firm Prices:	Prices are in CAD and are firm for all Customer FIRST Program support and services.
Financial & Credit Requirements:	Schneider Electric's acceptance of Purchase Order is contingent upon acceptable Customer's Credit Rating based on Audited Financial Statements or mutually agreeable equivalent documents. If acceptable credit rating is not available on subsidiary company, Schneider Electric will require Parent Company Guaranty or Payment Bond to secure all payments for the goods and services.
Taxes/Duties:	Sales taxes, duties and other fees are not included in this proposal.
Payment/Schedule	Payment schedule is defined in this proposal.
Services:	Customer FIRST Program support and services shall be performed as defined in the proposal and by local practice or labor law.
Others:	Unless stated as included elsewhere in the Proposal, all travel and living expenses are extra and will be invoiced at cost + 10%. Unless stated as included elsewhere in the Proposal, all engineering estimates do not include travel time which will be charged at an agreed to rate.  This quotation assumes standard work 8-hour days, Monday through Friday, Schneider Electric holidays excluded.
***	Customer FIRST Program Terms and Conditions apply to this proposal. Modifications and additional Schneider Electric terms and conditions may be defined in this proposal.

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755

Rev. : 1

Date: March 11, 2024

Confidential and Proprietary

Page 31 Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin SE Ref. : OP-231107-13727847





### 10.2 STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CUSTOMER FIRST AGREEMENT (CFA)

# Schneider Electric Systems Canada, Inc.

### General Terms and Conditions of Sale of CFA

### AGREEMENT TERM. Article 1 -

These General Terms and Conditions of Sale ("Terms of Sale") shall apply to any purchase or procurement of Goods, Software and/or Services by the legal entity procuring such Goods, Software and/or Services ("Buyer") from Schneider Electric Systems Canada, Inc. ("Seller"). To the extent that there is a conflict between these Terms of Sale and a valid signed master agreement between the Buyer and Seller, the specific conflicting terms of the master agreement shall prevail. To the extent that there is a conflict between these Terms of Sale and another set of Seller terms and conditions issued to the Buyer as part of the proposal or quotation process, the specific conflicting terms of the proposal or quotation document shall prevail. To the extent that Buyer attaches any other terms and conditions to a Purchase Order or other instrument used to buy Seller's Goods, Software or Services, such attached Buyer terms and conditions shall be null, and void and these Terms of Sale shall be the terms and conditions of sale. Any other variation from these Terms of Sale shall require the signed consent of an authorized Seller representative.

### Article 2 -**DEFINITIONS**

- 2.1 "Affiliates" means any legal entity which has an ownership interest in or is under a common ownership interest with a Party and which is defined in attachments to this Agreement or subsequent Purchase Orders. Notwithstanding the definition of Affiliates, Seller Affiliates shall not include Aveva Group PLC. and all its
- 2.2 "Agreement" means these terms and conditions, Seller's Proposal with all the attachments, and the Purchase Order with all Change Orders "if any". In case of any discrepancies between the documents, the order of precedence will be as following:
  - 1. Seller Proposal with all the attachments,
  - 2. These Terms of Sale with all the attachments, and
  - The Buyer Purchase Order.
- 2.3 "Buyer" shall mean the company and any of its Affiliates which has executed a Purchase Order under this
- "CFA" shall mean Customer First Agreement which is the support services program Buyer provides to Seller. CFA 2.4 scope of work, support exclusions and other special terms related to CFA are as described in the Seller's Proposal.
- 2.5 "Days" shall be calculated as calendar days unless otherwise specified under this Agreement.
- 2.6 "Expenses" shall mean all out-of-pocket expenses reasonably incurred by Seller in the provision of the Goods, Software and Services, including but not limited to, airfare, hotel, transportation, meals, supplies, data preparation, and other direct expenses incurred by Seller's personnel or subcontractors in performing Seller's obligations under a Purchase Order, as these expenses may be further detailed in a Purchase Order and the net tax costs of any nondeductible travel expenses for assignment of employees over one (1) year in locations not within a reasonable commuting radius of the employee's principal place of employment.
- 2.7 "Goods" shall mean all products, equipment, materials, spare parts, hardware, supplies, and accessories to be supplied under a Purchase Order.
- "Intellectual Property Rights" shall mean any patent, trademark, service marks, copyrights, trade secrets, 2.8 ideas, concepts, know-how, techniques or other proprietary right.
- "Party and Parties" shall mean Seller, Buyer hereunder and any third party to which the Parties may have 2.9 assigned their rights under the Agreement. In its singular form, Party means any one of Seller, Buyer or the third party to whom one of them has assigned its rights under the Agreement.
- 2.10 "Price" shall mean the total value of a Purchase Order after all applicable discounts have been applied. Expenses are not included in the Price unless agreed upon in the Purchase Order.

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 32 Rev.: 1 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





- 2.11 **"Purchase Order"** shall mean any purchase order, either paper or electronic, with related attachments and changes thereto, agreed upon by the Parties pursuant to this Agreement, which shall describe the specific Goods, Software or Services to be supplied by Seller to the Buyer and the detailed Specifications for such. Purchase Orders agreed upon from time to time between Seller and Buyer and/or their respective Affiliates shall constitute separate contracts that incorporate this Agreement.
- 2.12 "Seller" shall mean Schneider Electric Systems Canada, Inc.
- 2.13 "Services" shall mean the provision of testing, assessment, per-diem or specific time-limited engineering services, installation, start-up, configuration and any development of application programs, customization, implementation, training and any other services agreed upon between the Parties in Purchase Orders hereunder.
- 2.14 "Software" shall mean computer software programs, in object code form including firmware and custom software, and instructions manuals, specifications and related documentation in written or electronic form, their related instructions manuals and documentation, for which Seller grants Buyer a license under the contract. The conditions of the Software license shall be set forth in the Seller end-user license agreement applicable to the particular Software at the time of delivery or, in the absence of such end-user license agreement, the software license terms contained herein. All modifications, enhancements, developments, additions or interfaces with other computer programs made by Seller, alone or jointly with Buyer, in the course of the performance of a purchase order shall be deemed owned by Seller and included in the Seller Software and shall be subject to all rights and limitations set forth in this license agreement for such Software applicable at the time of delivery.
- 2.15 "Specifications" shall mean the Seller's standard specifications applicable to the Goods and/or Software at the time of execution of the Agreement or a Purchase Order hereunder or the specific requirements mutually agreed upon between the Parties in Purchase Orders hereunder in relation to the Goods, Software and, with respect to Services, the agreed upon statement(s) of work containing a description of the Services to be rendered.
- 2.16 "Warranty Period" shall mean the applicable time period during which Goods, Software and Services are respectively guaranteed by Seller under the conditions set forth herein and in accordance with the Warranties Article.

### Article 3 - CHANGES

- 3.1 Either Party may request changes that affect the scope, duration, delivery schedule or price of a Purchase Order, including changes in the Specifications and Goods, Software or Services to be delivered or licensed. If either Party requests any such change, the Parties shall negotiate in good faith a reasonable and equitable adjustment to the Purchase Order. Neither Party shall be bound by any change requested by the other until an amendment to the Purchase Order in the form of a change order has been accepted in writing by both Parties. Pricing of changes shall be based on the then current Seller's prices.
- 3.2 Any alteration, deletion or addition to the Work ordered in the Purchase Order, a change in any provision of the Purchase Order, or a change in law after the date of the Purchase Order, shall be effective only if made in a change order is executed by Buyer and Contractor. A change order, however, shall not modify any provisions of the Agreement unless the parties agree in writing to do so.

### Article 4 - PRICE

- 4.1 Unless otherwise stated in an applicable quotation or proposal, all prices are subject to change without notice. In the event of a net price change and unless otherwise agreed to in writing, prices for orders scheduled for immediate release shall be those in effect at time of order entry. Prices for orders placed for future shipment without an agreed price and ship date will be billed at the pricing in effect as of the shipment date. All clerical errors are subject to correction.
- 4.2 Services Assumptions: Seller's work estimates are based on work performed during normal work hours (8 hours) between the hours of 06:00 and 18:00 local time, Monday to Friday, holidays excepted. Unless specified in writing the following are chargeable in addition to base rates: overtime or premium hours, travel costs, specialized tools and test goods, utility shutdowns, any delays or site issues not caused by Seller, additional trips for postponement or delay. No on-site orientation, safety training, work required for site specific requirements is included in a quotation unless expressly specified by Seller.

Current rates are in Seller's then current Seller Field Services Demand Labor Rates document. Field specialists bill a 4-hour minimum charge for travel where Services are performed in less than 4 hours, and an 8-hour minimum charge for Services otherwise.

### Article 5 - TAXES:

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 33
Rev. : 1 Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin

 Rev.: 1
 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin

 Date: March 11, 2024
 SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





- 5.1 Unless otherwise set out in Seller's proposal or quotation, the price excludes all present or future sales taxes, revenue or excise taxes, value-added taxes, import and export duties and any other taxes, surcharges or duties now existing or hereafter imposed by Government authorities upon equipment and/or services quoted by the Seller. Buyer shall be responsible for all such taxes, duties and charges resulting from this agreement. The Seller is required to impose taxes on orders and shall invoice the Buyer for such taxes and/or fees according to state and local statute, unless the Buyer furnishes the Seller at the time of order with a properly completed exemption certificate(s) acceptable to the authorities imposing the tax or fees.
- 5.2 Any duty, tariff, levy, tax or charge (including without limitation, sales, use, excise, goods and services, harmonized, value-added and withholding taxes), customs levy or inspecting, licensing or testing fee, or other tax, fee or charge of any nature whatsoever, imposed by any governmental authority or measured by any transaction between Seller and Buyer, shall be paid by the Buyer in addition to the prices quoted or invoiced, and such charges will appear as a separate line item on the invoice. Buyer agrees that current unit prices will be equitably adjusted in the event Seller is required to pay any incremental amounts for any duty, tariff, levy, or charge on any input components of the Goods.

### **INVOICING** Article 6 -

- 6.1 Invoices shall be sent to the address specified in the Purchase Order.
- 6.2 Should Buyer dispute any invoice, Buyer shall notify Seller of the nature of the dispute in writing within fifteen (15) days of the invoice date. Buyer shall have the right to withhold payment of the portion of the payment in question until the dispute is resolved ("Disputed Invoice"). If Buyer does not notify Seller of any dispute within fifteen (15) calendar days of the invoice date, then the invoice is deemed to have been accepted and invoice payment is required to be made on the payment due date per contract terms. Notwithstanding any dispute regarding the invoice, Buyer shall pay the undisputed portion of the disputed invoice.
- 6.3 Seller shall invoice Buyer in accordance with the invoicing milestones agreed in the relevant Proposal. All Time and Materials Orders shall be billed at 100% of Labor hours expended and Goods supplied shall be billed at then current rates of the Seller on a monthly basis. All Expenses incurred shall be billed on a monthly basis with a minimum administrative fee equal to 5% of the amount of expenses.

### Article 7 -**PAYMENT TERMS**

- 7.1 Subject to Seller's approval of Buyer's current credit rating and unless otherwise agreed upon in the relevant Purchase Order, payments of all Goods, Software, Services are due in advance, and Expenses are due Net thirty (30) calendar days from the invoice date. Buyer acknowledges that it has the right to request Seller reassess Buyer's creditworthiness from time to time, which Seller has the right to make a revision in its sole determination Upon request, Buyer shall provide financial data evidencing the Buyer's worth in order for Seller to determine the creditworthiness of Buyer. Such information shall include, but not be limited to, annual reports, balance sheets, and bank records.
- 7.2 Payments advices from Buyer shall include the following information: invoice number, amount of payment, and purchase order number.
- 7.3 If Buyer is delinquent in its payment obligations, without prejudice to any other remedies available to it by law or in equity, Seller may demand immediate payment and at Seller's option (i) suspend all further deliveries or performance to be made under the Agreement or any further performance under any other contract with Buyer or Buyer's Affiliates, in which event Buyer shall not be released in any respect from its obligations to Seller under the Agreement or the other contract; (ii) recover all costs of collection including but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees; (iii) repossess the Goods and Software for which payment has not been made; (iv) retain any equipment supplied by Buyer to Seller in relation to Seller's provision of Services; (v) charge interest at 1.5% per month on the past due amount, not to exceed the interest percentage allowed by law; and (vi) reassess the credit worthiness of Buyer and change any current payment terms. Any discount from Seller's rates, if any, shall cease to apply to the delinquent invoice, Buyer shall be invoiced for such differences in cost, and shall immediately pay the resulting invoice.
- 7.4 Buyer shall not set off or recoup invoiced amounts or any portion thereof against sums that are due or may become due from Seller and/or its Affiliates.

### Article 8 -RECEIVING, INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE

8.1 If Buyer fails to notify Seller of any material non-conformities with the Specifications within a reasonable period following delivery, not to exceed thirty (30) calendar days, or is using those Goods, Software or Services in a production environment or for the regular conduct of its business, the Goods, Software or Services shall be deemed accepted, without prejudice to the warranty provisions hereunder.

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 34 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin Rev.: 1 SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





- 8.2 Buyer shall have the right to reject Goods, Software and Services not materially in accordance with the Specifications in the Purchase Order. Seller shall have a reasonable opportunity to correct non-conformities, replace non-conforming Goods and/or Software or correct or re-perform the Services at its option, in accordance with Warranty Article. Should Seller fail to use reasonable efforts to correct non-conformities, replace the nonconforming Goods and/or Software or re-perform or correct non-conforming Services within a reasonable period of time, based on the complexity of the non-conformities, Buyer may terminate the Purchase Order or portion thereof. Seller's maximum liability under this Article shall be to refund the fees and expenses paid by Buyer for the portion of the Goods, Software or Services that is non-conforming.
- 8.3 Unless other acceptance criteria are agreed upon in the Specifications, Seller's standard testing procedures, including factory acceptance test and site acceptance test where applicable, shall apply to Goods, Software and Services provided. If Buyer's representative is unable to attend any of these tests having received reasonable notice thereof, Buyer shall be deemed to have waived its entitlement to attend such tests. To the extent that any Goods, Software or Services have been, or can be deemed approved by Buyer pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or the applicable Purchase Order at any stage of Seller's performance, Seller shall be entitled to rely on such approval for purposes of all subsequent stages of its performance hereunder.

### WARRANTIES Article 9 -

- 9.1 Warranty Period: shall mean the applicable time period during which Goods, Software and Services are respectively guaranteed by Seller under the conditions set forth herein as follows:
  - Customer First Support Program ("CFA"): are warranted for a period of Ninety (90) days from the date of Service. Seller warrants that any parts, for Goods which are supplied while performing Services under the Agreement, will be free from material defects for a period of 90 days following delivery of such parts. Additionally, Seller warrants that any Software upgrades, patches, service packs, quick fix, quick custom, or corrective fixes which are supplied while performing Services under the Agreement, will be free from material defects for a period of 90 days following delivery of such Software upgrades, patches, service packs, quick fix, quick custom or corrective fixes. For any breach of these warranties, a Buyer's exclusive remedy, and Seller' entire liability, shall be the reperformance of the Services or repair or replacement of such parts, Software upgrades, patches, service packs, quick fix, or quick custom.
  - **Consumable Products:** Products normally consumed in operation or which have an inherently short normal use period, including but not limited to consumables such as flashtubes, lamps, batteries, storage capacitors, are guaranteed for a period of ninety (90) days from date of delivery by Seller, except for disposable PH/ORP sensors, replacement PH, ORP and reference electrodes and dissolved oxygen membranes which are guaranteed for a period of one (1) year from the date of shipment or until they are installed, whichever occurs first.
- 9.2 Exclusive Warranty Remedies: In the event of any warranty covered defects or deficiencies in Goods in subsections above, or Services in subs. (b) above, the sole and exclusive obligation of Seller shall be to re-perform the Services, or repair or replace the defective Goods or part of the Goods, at Seller's sole discretion. Such warranty coverage is contingent on Buyer providing prompt notification to Seller once such defect or deficiency is reasonably apparent to Buyer.
- 9.3 Exclusions & Limitations: This warranty shall not apply (a) to Goods not manufactured by Seller, (b) Services not provided directly by Seller, (c) to Goods or Services that has been repaired or altered by anyone other than Seller so as, in Seller's judgment, affects the same adversely, (d) Seller's conformance with Buyer's design of the Goods or Software; or (e) to Goods or Services that appear to be subjected to negligence, accident, or damage by circumstances beyond Seller's control, or improper any non-Seller operation, maintenance or storage, or to other than normal use or service. The foregoing warranties do not cover reimbursement for labor, transportation, removal, installation, temporary power, or any other expenses that may be incurred in connection with repair or replacement.
- Non-Seller Goods or Services: With respect to Goods not manufactured by Seller, or Services provided by 9.4 non-Seller providers, the warranty obligations of Seller shall in all respects conform and be limited to the warranty extended to Seller by such non-Seller supplier.
- 9.5 SELLER MAKES NO WARRANTY THAT THE BUYER'S USE OF SELLER'S GOODS, SOFTWARE, OR SERVICES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED, SECURE AND/OR ERROR-FREE. SELLER DOES NOT REPRESENT OR GUARANTEE THAT ANY GOODS AND/OR SOFTWARE WILL BE FREE FROM VULNERABILITIES, ATTACK, VIRUSES, INTERFERENCE, HACKING, OR OTHER SECURITY INTRUSIONS, AND SELLER DISCLAIMS ANY LIABILITY IN RELATION THERETO.
- SOFTWARE AND SERVICES SOLD BY SELLER TO BUYER, BY USING THE PRODUCTS, SOFTWARE 9.6 OR SERVICES. BUYER UNDERSTANDS THESE LIMITATIONS AND AGREES THAT BUYER ACCESSES

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 35 Rev.: 1 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





AND USES THE PRODUCTS, SOFTWARE AND SERVICES AT BUYER'S OWN DISCRETION AND RISK AND THAT BUYER WILL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGES TO BUYER'S SYSTEMS OR ASSETS OR LOSSES THAT RESULT FROM SUCH ACCESS OR USE.

- 9.7 EXCEPT AS SET FORTH HEREIN OR IN THE WARRANTIES PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN SEPARATE SOFTWARE END USE LICENSE AGREEMENTS, THESE WARRANTIES, CONDITIONS, AND EXCLUSIONS ARE EXCLUSIVE AND IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, CONDITIONS, REPRESENTATIONS AND GUARANTEES (EXCEPT WARRANTIES OF TITLE), EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED, TO IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, MERCHANTABLE QUALITY, AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. EXCEPT AS MAY BE PROVIDED IN WRITING BY SELLER, SELLER SHALL NOT BE SUBJECT TO ANY OTHER OBLIGATIONS OR LIABILITIES WHATSOEVER THAN AS STATED ABOVE WITH REGARD TO GOODS, SOFTWARE AND SERVICES SOLD BY SELLER TO BUYER.
- 9.8 ALL WARRANTIES PROVIDED HEREIN ARE PERSONAL TO, AND INTENDED SOLELY FOR THE BENEFIT OF, BUYER AND DO NOT EXTEND TO ANY THIRD PARTY, EXCEPT IN CASE OF TRANSFER OF THE SOFTWARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE SOFTWARE LICENSE OR THE ASSIGNMENT ARTICLE.

1.

### Article 10 -INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY OWNERSHIP

- 10.1 Seller retains ownership of all right, title and interest (including copyright and patent rights) in and to its Intellectual Property Rights relating to Goods and Services and work product relating to these. Nothing in these Terms of Sale constitutes a transfer or conveyance of any right, title or interest in such Intellectual Property, including without limitation any Software, including firmware, contained in those, except the limited right for use as it provided and stated herein.
- 10.2 Seller may utilize proprietary works of authorship, pre-existing or otherwise, including without limitation software, computer programs, methodologies, templates, flowcharts, architecture designs, tools, specifications, drawings, sketches, models, samples, records and documentation, as well as Intellectual Property Rights and any derivatives thereof, which have been originated, developed or purchased by Seller, an Affiliate of Seller, or by third parties under contract to Seller or to an Affiliate of Seller (all of the foregoing, collectively, "Seller's Information"). Seller and any third party owner shall retain at all times their respective ownership of Seller's Information.
- 10.3 Seller or the applicable third-party owner shall retain at all times the ownership of its Software, and Third Party Products, regardless of the media upon which the original or copy may be recorded or fixed. Without prejudice to the license(s) expressly granted hereunder and under a Purchase Order, no right, title or interest in or to the Software, Seller's Information, any copies thereof and any Intellectual Property Rights residing in the Goods, Software or result of Services is transferred to Buyer. Buyer acknowledges that the prices for Services and Software charged by Seller under these Terms of Sale are predicated in part on Seller's retention of ownership over such Software and any results of the Services, none of which shall be considered "work for hire."
- 10.4 Buyer shall retain at all times the ownership of its Intellectual Property Rights, regardless of the media upon which the original or copy may be recorded or fixed.

### SELLER SOFTWARE LICENSE Article 11 -

Any software or computer information, in whatever form that is provided with Goods manufactured by Seller or as part of Services, is licensed to Buyer as previously sold under or pursuant to standard licenses of Seller or its supplier of such software or computer information which licenses are hereby incorporated by reference and are available upon request. Seller does not warrant that such software or computer information will operate error-free or without interruption and warrants only that during the warranty period applicable to the Goods that the software will perform its essential functions. If such software or computer information fails to conform to such warranty, Seller will, at its option, provide an update to correct the nonconformance or replace the software or computer information with the latest available version containing a correction. Seller shall have no other obligation to provide updates or revisions.

### CONFIDENTIALITY Article 12 -

12.1 "Confidential Information" shall mean any and all information in any form that each Party provides to each other in the course of the Agreement and that either (i) has been marked as confidential; or (ii) is of such nature that a reasonable person would treat as confidential under like circumstances. Unless otherwise provided in the Specifications, Confidential Information does not include work products resulting from the Services performed hereunder and information which (i) is already known to the other Party at the time of disclosure; (ii) is independently developed without the benefit of the other's Confidential Information; (iii) is received from a third party that is not under any confidentiality obligation towards the owner of the information; or (iv) has entered the public domain through no fault of the recipient.

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 36 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin Rev.: 1

Date: March 11, 2024 SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





12.2	Each Party retain	ns ownershir	of its Confid	ential Information.

- 12.3 Each party agrees to (i) protect the other's Confidential Information in the same manner as it protects the confidentiality of its own proprietary and confidential materials but in no event with less than reasonable care; (ii) use the other's Confidential Information only in relation to the Purchase Order.
- Upon termination of this Agreement or a relevant Purchase Order or upon written request submitted by the 12.4 disclosing Party, whichever comes first, the receiving Party shall return or destroy, at the disclosing Party's choice, all of the disclosing Party's Confidential Information.
- 12.5 Neither Party shall, except with respect to their employees, contractors or agents with a need to know for purposes of this Agreement, disclose to any person any Confidential Information of the other Party without the other Party's prior written consent, except where Confidential Information may be disclosed by law.
- 12.6 Unless otherwise agreed in Purchase Orders, these confidentiality obligations shall terminate five (5) years after the expiration of the relevant Purchase Order or termination of this Agreement, whichever comes first.

### SUSPENSION Article 13 -

- 13.1 Seller's performance of work under this Agreement or a Purchase Order may be suspended by the Buyer in whole or in part whenever the Buyer may elect, with minimum prior written notice ("Notice of Suspension") of at least thirty (30) business days.
- 13.2 Upon Notice of Suspension, Seller shall (i) discontinue work on the date and to the extent specified in the notice; and (ii) makes every reasonable effort to stop orders for materials and equipment and reassign personnel.
- 13.3 Upon Notice of Suspension, Buyer shall Pay all fees earned and expenses incurred in connection with the performance of this Agreement or the Purchase Order until the effective date of such suspension ("Fees and Expenses") including all reasonable costs directly related to Buyer's suspension pursuant to this provision, including costs associated with personnel reassignment, travel, restocking charges, storage costs and other administrative requirements ("Suspension Costs").
- 13.4 In addition to the above, in the event of a suspension, Buyer acknowledges the following:
  - All Milestones and/or delivery dates that have been agreed to, will be postponed, and such Milestones and/or a) delivery dates will be mutually agreed to upon the lifting of the Suspension.
  - If the Suspension continues for more than thirty (30) days that the Seller's personnel assigned to the Agreement or b) Purchase Order may not be available and any cost required to attain the knowledge required to continue the performance of the Agreement or Purchase Order upon lifting the Suspension will be for the account of the Buyer.
  - When the performance is re-commenced, Buyer shall pay costs associated with extending performance, such as, but c) not limited to, increased costs for Services, Goods, or Software, or the extension of warranties.
  - d) The suspended Agreement and/or Purchase Order shall be recommenced upon the date mutually agreed to between the Parties.
- If the Buyer breaches any of its contractual obligations, including but not limited to its payment obligations, Seller 13.5 shall have the right to suspend the performance of the Purchase Order.
- In the event that the suspension continues for greater than ninety (90) days, Seller, at its sole option, may terminate 13.6 the Purchase, and the suspension shall be treated as a Termination for Convenience.

### Article 14 -TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

Unless otherwise agreed in the Seller's Proposal:

- 14.1 Seller's performance of work under this Agreement or a Purchase Order may be terminated by the Buyer in accordance with this article in whole or in part whenever the Buyer may elect, with minimum prior written notice ("Notice of Termination") of at least thirty (30) business days. Any such termination shall take place by delivery to the Seller of a Notice of Termination specifying the extent to which performance of work under the Agreement or Purchase Order is terminated, and the date upon which termination becomes effective. Upon receipt of any such notice, Seller shall, unless the notice requires otherwise:
  - discontinue work on the date and to the extent specified in the notice; and a)
  - makes every reasonable effort to obtain cancellation of all orders to subcontractors. b)
- 14.2 Upon Notice of Termination, Buyer shall (i) pay all fees earned and expenses incurred in connection with the performance of this Agreement or the Purchase Order until the effective date of such termination ("Fees and Expenses"), (ii) any and all reasonable costs directly related to Buyer's termination pursuant to this provision, including costs associated with personnel reassignment, travel, restocking charges and other administrative requirements ("Termination Costs"), and (iii) a termination fee of ten percent (10%) of the remaining value of each terminated Purchase Order. In the event of partial execution of the Agreement or when termination occurs between two invoicing milestones, a prorated share of the fees shall be added based upon the portion of

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 37 Rev.: 1 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





Purchase Order completed on the termination date.

### Article 15 - TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT

- Either Party may terminate this Agreement or any outstanding Purchase Order for default if the other has materially breached any of its obligations under the relevant Purchase Order and has not cured the breach within thirty (30) days of written receipt of a notice from the other Party.
- Termination of a Purchase Order by either Party whether for default or for convenience shall not affect continuing performance by the Parties of their respective obligations under a different Purchase Order, unless otherwise agreed upon by the Parties.

### Article 16 - <u>COMPLIANCE</u>

- Neither Party shall comply with any foreign boycott laws or requirements, which are in violation of any federal or state law, rule, or regulation.
- 16.2 Either Party shall execute and deliver to the other any documents as may be required to effect or evidence compliance.
- The Parties may correspond and convey documentation via the Internet unless Buyer expressly requests otherwise. Neither Party has control over the performance, reliability, availability or security of the Internet. Seller shall not be liable for any loss, damage, expense, harm or inconvenience resulting from the loss, delay, interception, corruption or alteration of any communication over the Internet due to any reason beyond Seller's reasonable control.

### Article 17 - IMPORT AND EXPORT

- The deliverables provided by Seller under this Agreement contain or may contain components and/or technologies from the United States of America ("US"), the European Union ("EU") and/or other nations. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that the supply, assignment and/or usage of the products, software, services, information, other deliverables and/or the embedded technologies (hereinafter referred to as "Deliverables") under this Agreement shall fully comply with related applicable US, EU and other national and international export control laws and/or regulations.
- Unless applicable export license/s has been obtained from the relevant authority and the Seller has approved, the Deliverables shall not (i) be exported and/or re-exported to any destination and party (may include but not limited to an individual, group and/or legal entity) restricted by the applicable export control laws and/or regulations; or (ii) be used for those purposes and fields restricted by the applicable export control laws and/or regulations. Buyer also agrees that the Deliverables will not be used either directly or indirectly in any rocket systems or unmanned air vehicles; nor be used in any nuclear weapons delivery systems; and will not be used in any design, development, production or use for any weapons which may include but not limited to chemical, biological or nuclear weapons.
- If any necessary or advisable licenses, authorizations or approvals are not obtained, whether arising from inaction by any relevant government authority or otherwise, or if any such licenses, authorizations or approvals are denied or revoked, or if the applicable export control laws and/or regulations would prohibit Seller from fulfilling any order, or would in Seller's judgment otherwise expose Seller to a risk of liability under the applicable export control laws and/or regulations if it fulfilled the order, Seller shall be excused from all obligations under such order and/or this Agreement.

### Article 18 - FORCE MAJEURE

18.1 Seller will be excused from and not be liable for any non-performance of a Purchase Order if such delay or non-performance is due to any cause beyond the reasonable control of Seller, or which Seller could not reasonably foresee or reasonably provide against, and which prevents Seller from carrying out the terms of the Purchase Order. This includes but is not limited to the following: war, revolution, insurrection or hostilities (whether declared or not), riot, economic upheaval, civil commotion or uprising, flood, earthquake, tempest, hurricane, lightning or other natural disaster; fire or explosion, epidemic or pandemic, strike, lockout or other industrial disturbance whether at Seller or one of its suppliers; sabotage, accident, cyber-attack, embargo, car shortage, wrecks or delays in transportation, non-delivery of materials or order or action of government authority.

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 38 Rev. : 1 Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin

 Rev. : 1
 Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin

 Date : March 11, 2024
 SE Ref. : OP-231107-13727847





- The Buyer acknowledges that the products or part thereof are produced in, or otherwise sourced from, or will be installed in areas already affected by, or that may be affected in the future by, the prevailing epidemics or pandemic and that the situation may trigger stoppage, hindrance or delays in Seller (or its subcontractors) capacity to produce, deliver, install or service the products, irrespective of whether such stoppage, hindrance or delays are due to measures imposed by authorities or deliberately implemented by the Seller (or its subcontractors) as preventive or curative measures to avoid harmful contamination exposure of Seller's (or its subcontractors') employees. The Buyer therefore recognizes that such circumstances shall be considered as a cause for excusable delay not exposing the Seller to contractual sanctions including without limitation delay penalties, liquidated or other damages or termination for default.
- Any delay resulting from such cause shall extend the date of delivery accordingly. Seller reserves the right to cancel a Purchase Order, if in its opinion such circumstances threaten or cause extended delay in the performance thereof.

### Article 19 - <u>INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR</u>

- 19.1 Seller is performing the Services as an independent contractor and not as an employee of Buyer and none of Seller's personnel shall be entitled to receive any compensation, benefits or other incidents of employment from Buyer. Seller shall be responsible for all taxes and other expenses arising from the employment or independent contractor relationship between Seller and its personnel and the provision of services hereunder by such personnel to Buyer.
- 19.2 At all times and notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in a Purchase Order, Seller retains full control over the methods, details, persons employed or otherwise used to perform the Services and any other means of performance of its obligations under a Purchase Order and vary the composition of the team assigned to the performance of the Services or make different arrangements to achieve completion of its obligations.
- 19.3 Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute a partnership, joint venture, or fiduciary relationship between Buyer and Seller, nor shall anything in this Agreement be deemed to create an agency relationship between Buyer and Seller. Neither Buyer nor Seller shall be or become liable or bound by any representation, act or omission whatsoever of the other.

### Article 20 - BUYER'S OBLIGATIONS

### 20. 1 **General Obligations:**

- Unless otherwise specifically agreed in the Specifications, Seller's personnel shall not perform Services on equipment in operation on Buyer's work site.
- b) If Seller is to perform Services on Buyer's work site, Buyer shall be responsible for obtaining all applicable permits, visas or other governmental approvals required. Buyer shall be responsible for ensuring the safety of work conditions at its site and the safety of Seller's personnel.
- c) Seller ensures that its employees, subcontractors and agents adhere to and comply with Buyer's health, safety, security and environmental ("HSSE") policies while at the work site, to the extent these policies have been made available to Seller.
- d) Buyer agrees to cooperate with Seller in the performance of the project described in the Specifications, including, without limitation, providing Seller with, timely access to data, information and personnel of Buyer, and while on Buyer's Site, reasonable facilities and a safe working environment.
- e) Buyer acknowledges and agrees that Seller's performance is dependent upon the timely and effective satisfaction of Buyer's responsibilities hereunder and timely decisions and approvals of Buyer where required. In addition, Buyer acknowledges and agrees that Seller may, in performing its obligations pursuant to this Agreement, be dependent upon or use data, material, and other information furnished by Buyer without any independent investigation or verification thereof, and that Seller shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness of such information in performing its obligations. In the event that Seller incurs cost or is delayed due to Buyer's failure to comply with its obligations hereunder, Buyer shall issue a change order to extend the schedule and/or to provide the additional funding for any of Seller's costs incurred.

### 20. 2 **Buyer's Cybersecurity Obligations**:

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 39
Rev. : 1 Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin

 Rev.: 1
 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin

 Date: March 11, 2024
 SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847

- a) Buyer's Obligations for Its Systems: Buyer is solely responsible for the implementation and maintenance of a comprehensive security program ("Security Program") that contains reasonable and appropriate security measures and safeguards to protect its computer network, systems, machines, and data (collectively, "Systems"), including those Systems on which it runs the Products or which it uses with the Services, against Cyber Threats. "Cyber Threat" means any circumstance or event with the potential to adversely impact, compromise, damage, or disrupt Buyer's Systems or that may result in any unauthorized access, acquisition, loss, misuse, destruction, disclosure, and/or modification of Buyer's Systems, including any data, including through malware, hacking, or similar attacks.
- b) Without limiting the foregoing, Buyer shall at a minimum:
  - have qualified and experienced personnel with appropriate expertise in cybersecurity maintain Buyer's Security Program, and have such personnel regularly monitor cyber intelligence feeds and security advisories applicable to Buyer's Systems or Buyer's industry;
  - promptly update or patch its Systems or implement other appropriate measures based on any reported
    Cyber Threats and in compliance with any security notifications or bulletins, whether publicly disclosed on
    Seller's security notification webpage at https://www.se.com/ww/en/work/support/cybersecurity/securitynotifications.jsp or otherwise provided to Buyer;
  - regularly monitor its Systems for possible Cyber Threats;
  - regularly conduct vulnerability scanning, penetration testing, intrusion scanning, and other cybersecurity testing on its Systems; and
  - meet the recommendations of Seller's Recommended Cybersecurity Best Practices, available at <a href="https://www.se.com/us/en/download/document/7EN52-0390/">https://www.se.com/us/en/download/document/7EN52-0390/</a>, as may be updated by Seller from time to time, and then-current industry standards.
- c) Buyer's Use of the Products, Software, and Services: Seller may release Updates and Patches for its Products, Software, and Services from time to time. Buyer shall promptly install any Updates and Patches for such Products, Software, or Services as soon as they are available in accordance with Seller's installation instructions and using the latest version of the Products or Software, where applicable. An "Update" means any software that contains a correction of errors in a Product, Software, or Service and/or minor enhancements or improvements for a Product, Software, or Service, but does not contain significant new features. A "Patch" is an Update that fixes a vulnerability in a Product, Software, or Service. Buyer understands that failing to promptly and properly install Updates or Patches for the Products, Software, or Services may result in the Products, Software, or Services or Buyer's Systems becoming vulnerable to certain Cyber Threats or result in impaired functionality, and Seller shall not be liable or responsible for any losses or damages that may result.
- d) Identification of Cyber Threats: If Buyer identifies or otherwise becomes aware of any vulnerabilities or other Cyber Threats relating to the Products, Software, or Services for which Seller has not released a Patch, Buyer shall promptly notify Seller of such vulnerability or other Cyber Threat(s) via the Seller Report a Vulnerability page (https://www.se.com/ww/en/work/support/cybersecurity/report-a-vulnerability.jsp#Customers) and further provide Seller with any reasonably requested information relating to such vulnerability (collectively, "Feedback"). Seller shall have a non-exclusive, perpetual and irrevocable right to use, display, reproduce, modify, and distribute the Feedback (including any confidential information or intellectual property contained therein) in whole or part, including to analyze and fix the vulnerability, to create Patches or Updates for its customers, and to otherwise modify its Products, Software, or Services, in any manner without restrictions, and without any obligation of attribution or compensation to Buyer; provided, however, Seller shall not publicly disclose Buyer's name in connection with such use or the Feedback (unless Buyer consents otherwise). By submitting Feedback, Buyer represents and warrants to Seller that Buyer has all necessary rights in and to such Feedback does not infringe any proprietary or other rights of third parties or contain any unlawful information.
- e) Buyer agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Seller from and against any and all claims, lawsuits, demands, actions, or other proceedings brought against it by any third party due to, arising out of, or related to Buyer's failure to comply with its obligation as identified under this article, including Buyer's failure maintain a Security Program in compliance with what was agreed with the Seller or Buyer's failure to promptly and properly install Updates and Patches for the Products, Software or Services in accordance with this article.

Article 21 - INSURANCE

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 40 Rev. : 1 Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin





Seller maintains sufficient insurance and shall provide upon request to Buyer, certificates of such insurance policies. Seller agrees to provide a thirty (30) days advance notice of any material change or cancellation of any insurance policies.

### INDEMNIFICATION Article 22 -

- 22.1 Seller shall indemnify, defend and hold Buyer harmless against third party claims (including without limitation, the Parties' employees) for personal injury, death or loss or damage to property caused by and to the extent of Seller's negligence in the performance of its obligations hereunder, provided (i) Seller is entitled to exclusively control the defense against the claim; (ii) Seller is immediately notified of such claim and (iii) Buyer provides reasonable assistance in the defense of the claim and does not enter into any settlement or make any concession without the Seller's prior written approval.
- 22.2 This Article states the Parties' entire liability and sole remedy with respect to infringement or claims thereof.

### Article 23 -LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

- NOTWITHSTANDING ANY PROVISION OF THESE CONDITIONS OF SALE OR ANY OTHER 23.1 CONTRACT DOCUMENT TO THE CONTRARY, IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY, ITS OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, AFFILIATES OR EMPLOYEES BE LIABLE FOR: LOSS OF BUSINESS, PROFITS, REVENUES OR ANTICIPATED SAVINGS; LOSS OR DEPLETION OF GOODWILL; LOSS OF ORDERS, PRODUCTION OR USE; LOSS OR CORRUPTION (OR RECONSTRUCTION) OF DATA OR INFORMATION OR RECONSTRUCTION OF DATA OR INFORMATION; ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL OR PURE ECONOMIC LOSS, COSTS, DAMAGES, CHARGES OR EXPENSES: OR ANY INCIDENTAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES.
- 23.2 NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION OF THESE CONDITIONS OF SALE OR ANY OTHER CONTRACT DOCUMENT TO THE CONTRARY, AND TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, THE MAXIMUM AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF SELLER FOR DIRECT DAMAGES HEREUNDER SHALL NOT EXCEED THE AMOUNTS ACTUALLY PAID BY THE BUYER TO SELLER FOR THE WORK GIVING RISE TO A CLAIM.
- TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS ARTICLE SHALL APPLY 23.3 REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, DAMAGE, CLAIM, LIABILITY, COST, EXPENSE, OR LOSS, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STATUTE, TORT OR OTHERWISE.

### Article 24 -ASSIGNMENT

- This Agreement shall extend to and be binding upon the parties hereto, their successors, and assigns, provided, 24.1 however, that neither Party shall assign or transfer this Agreement or any Purchase Order hereunder without the other party's express prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Seller shall have the right to assign this Agreement or any Purchase Order hereunder to any of its parent, affiliates without prior written consent of Buyer and Buyer shall have the right to transfer the licensed Software in accordance with the applicable License.
- Seller shall have the right at any time without prior consent of Buyer to subcontract all or part of its obligations 24.2 under a Purchase Order. Such subcontract shall not relieve Seller from its obligations under this Agreement and relevant Purchase Order.

### LAWS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION Article 25 -

All matters arising out of or relating to the execution, construction, interpretation or breach thereof, are to be governed by the laws of Ontario, excluding such jurisdiction's rules regarding conflicts of laws and the provisions of the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods. Seller agrees to bring any action claims or legal proceedings in any way pertaining to this Purchase Order, or the execution, construction, interpretation or breach thereof in the courts of the jurisdiction specified above and in no other court or tribunal whatsoever. The governing language for this Agreement shall be English, and no concurrent or subsequent translation of this Agreement into any language shall modify any term of this Agreement. All documents and communications contemplated thereby or relating thereto be drawn up in the English language. Les parties confirment avoir requis que cet accord, ainsi que tous les documents et communications qui y sont relatifs soient rédigés en Anglais.

### ANTIBRIBERY AND CORRUPTION Article 26 -

Buyer acknowledges that Seller is committed to eliminating all risk of bribery and corruption, influence 26. 1

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 41 Rev.: 1 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin

Date: March 11, 2024 SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847





peddling, money laundering and tax evasion or the facilitation thereof in its business activities. Buyer must immediately notify Seller of any suspected, or known, breaches of Anti-Corruption Law. Buyer may raise this alert through their point of contact or through the Green Line: https://secure.ethicspoint.eu/domain/media/en/gui/104677/index.html.

- 26. 2 None of Buyer's employees, beneficial owners, shareholders, or any other person who is involved in or will benefit from the performance of the Contract or has an interest in Buyer:
  - a) is a civil servant, public or governmental official;
  - b) is an official or employee of Seller or one of its affiliates; or
  - c) has been convicted of, or otherwise been subjected to any administrative sanction or penalty for, any offence involving fraud, bribery, corruption, influence peddling, money laundering, or any other criminal offence involving dishonesty as an element. Buyer will immediately notify Seller if any such individuals are the subject of any investigation into any such offenses.
- 26. 3 Buyer undertakes and covenants to Seller that it shall not, alone or in conjunction with any other person, directly or indirectly, offer, pay, give, promise to pay or give, or authorize the payment or giving of any money, gift, undue advantage, or anything of value to any employee, official or authorized representatives of Seller.

### **SOLE AGREEMENT**

This Agreement, including any Purchase Order entered into pursuant hereto, constitutes the entire agreement of the parties hereto with respect to its subject matter and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous representations, proposals, discussions, and communications, whether oral or in writing with respect to this subject matter. This Agreement may be modified only by means of a duly executed written amendment signed by the authorized representatives of both Parties. Neither the terms of any invoice or other instrument documenting a payment or transaction that is issued by Buyer in connection this Agreement, nor any other act, document, pre-printed form or statement, usage, custom, or course of dealing shall modify the terms of this Agreement. In the event of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement and any Purchase Order, the provisions of this Agreement shall govern unless expressly agreed upon by the Parties under the Purchase Order and modifications made by the Purchase Order to this Agreement are required to comply with local applicable laws.

### Article 28 - HEALTH AND SAFETY COMPLIANCE

Seller employees shall not perform Services that, in their sole opinion, are not free of reasonably foreseeable harm. This includes working on any equipment, whether provided by Seller, Buyer or otherwise, that in such Seller employees' sole opinion has not been placed in an electrically safe working condition.

Buyer warrants that site and working conditions shall meet or exceed those specified by applicable Occupational Health and Safety Act and Regulations. Buyer shall inform Seller of: (a) Known hazards, or reasonably foreseeable hazards, that are related to Seller's scope of Services and the site where the Services will be performed; and (b) Information about the worksite necessary to identify hazards and assess risk for the protection of the health and safety of Seller personnel. This information might include, but is not limited to: (i) Providing an accurate up-to-date single line diagram of the electrical distribution system; (ii) Providing relevant Workplace Hazardous Materials Information System (WHMIS) information such as Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) and floor plans indicating areas where hazardous materials are located and emergency exits for service rooms and other areas of operation; and (iii) Other site specific information relative to the Buyer's operation, process and safety systems. Any hazardous materials requiring remediation in Seller's sole opinion will be separately chargeable to Buyer and will be a condition precedent to Seller's performance of such Services.

### Article 29 - MISCELLANEOUS

29.1 <u>Waiver</u>. Failure by either Party to insist upon strict performance of any of the terms and conditions hereof or failure or delay exercising any rights or remedies provided herein or by law or to properly notify the other in the event of breach shall not be construed as a waiver of any provision of this Agreement or Purchase Order. No waiver by a party of a right or default under this Order shall be effective unless in writing.

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 42 Rev. : 1 Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin

 Rev. : 1
 Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin

 Date : March 11, 2024
 SE Ref. : OP-231107-13727847





29.2	Severability. If any provision or portion of this Agreement shall be adjudged invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or by operation of any applicable law, that provision or portion of this Agreement shall be deemed omitted and the remaining provisions and portions shall remain in full force and effect.
29.3	Amendments. Any amendment to the terms of this Agreement shall only be effective if made in writing and signed by Buyer and Seller. Once an Agreement amendment is made, it shall be deemed incorporated as of its effective date for all future Purchase Orders, unless expressly stated to the contrary in the Agreement amendment. Such amendment shall also apply to ongoing Purchase Orders except no such amendment shall impact the pricing, pay, title, delivery, or freight terms of ongoing Purchase Orders unless expressly stated to the contrary in the Agreement amendment.
29.4	Notice. All notices hereunder shall be deemed given if delivered in writing personally, by courier, sent via mail, electronic transmission, telephone facsimile, telex, or telegram to Buyer or to Seller at the address(es) set forth in the Purchase Order(s). Electronic transmission must be acknowledged by a process requiring human action. Any notice given by mail shall be deemed given at the time such notice is deposited with the mail service.
29.5	Survivorship. The provisions of this Agreement that by their nature survive final acceptance under a Purchase Order, expiration, cancellation or termination of any Purchase Order or Agreement and shall remain in full force and effect after such acceptance and payment for the period specified herein, or if not specified then for the maximum time allowed by law. These Articles are (Definitions, Price, Taxes, Warranties, Intellectual Property Ownership, Seller Software License "if any", Confidentiality, Compliance, Force Majeure, Indemnification, Limitation of Liability and Laws and Dispute Resolution)
29.6	<u>Headings</u> . The headings in this Agreement are for ease of reference only and shall not be used to construe or interpret the provisions of the Agreement.
29.7	Greenline. In the event Buyer has concerns related to ethics, compliance or Seller's Principles of Responsibility, and/or any potential violations of these policies, Buyer is welcome to make use Seller's GreenLine. The GreenLine is Seller's global helpline for external stakeholders. It is a confidential channel through which Buyers can ask

questions and raise concerns. Reports can be made using the link below: <a href="https://secure.ethicspoint.eu/domain/media/en/gui/104677/index.html">https://secure.ethicspoint.eu/domain/media/en/gui/104677/index.html</a>

Proposal No. : QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 43
Rev. : 1 Tender Engineer : N.Hassanin
Date : March 11, 2024 SE Ref. : OP-231107-13727847





### Attachment A

### Special Terms and Conditions for multi-year CFA

These Special Terms and Conditions will only apply to a multi-year Customer First Agreement ("CFA"). For the purposes of interpretation or discrepancy with any other documents, these Special Terms and Conditions for multi-year CFA shall prevail.

### Article 1 -TERM.

Notwithstanding anything else in a Buyer Purchase Order, or if the Buyer Purchase Order is issued for a period less than the Term of the CFA, Buyer agrees that the CFA Term shall be the Agreement Term, and such Term shall take precedence over any other period stated elsewhere. If Buyer issues a Purchase Order for less than the Term, Buyer's failure to issue a subsequent Purchase Order or other order document for the remainder of the Term shall be considered a "Termination for Convenience" pursuant to the Article in this Attachment hereafter.

### Article 2 -TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE.

Buyer may terminate the Agreement without cause by giving Seller ninety (90) days written notice of such termination prior to the specified termination date. Upon termination of the Agreement, Buyer shall pay Seller (i) all fees and expenses (including but not limited to CFA fees) earned or incurred in connection with the performance of the Services under the Agreement until the effective date of such termination ("Fees and Expenses"); (ii) any and all reasonable costs directly related to Buyer's termination pursuant to this provision, including costs associated with personnel reassignment, travel and other administrative requirements, which termination costs equal 25% of the remaining balance of the total Agreement value and (iii) a Termination Fee equal to 2.5 % of the Agreement value.

Proposal No.: QLK-2402-7337755 Confidential and Proprietary Page 44 Rev.: 1 Tender Engineer: N.Hassanin SE Ref.: OP-231107-13727847